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Joseph Arthur Roberts, State Bar No. 156180
LAW OFFICE OF J. ARTHUR ROBERTS
3345 Newport Blvd., Suite 213

Newport Beach, CA 92663

TED STATES DISTRICT COURT
TRICT OF CALIFORNIA

on behalf of themse Assigned to: Honorable Cormac J. Carney
similarly situated,

Plaintiffs,
VS. . Un ' Unfalr Acts §17200

AURORA LOAN SERVIE
QUALITY LOAN SERVICE
CORPORATION; EXECUTIVE URY TRIAL

TRUSTEE SERVICES, LLC and DOE " 4 er 28. 2011
through 10, inclusive,

Defendants.

Plaintiffs captioned above, by and through his attorney of record, bri ction against

defendants AURORA LOAN SERVICES, LLC (“AURORA”), QU. LOAN SERVICE

CORPORATION (“QUALITY”), EXECUTIVE TRUSTEE SERVICES (“ETS”) AND DOES 1
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through 10, inclusive, inclusive (collectively, “Defendants”) and alleges the following on

information and belief, except as to those allegations which pertain to the Plaintiffs:

VENUE

ubject matter jurisdiction over this action under 28 USC § 1331

n the action arises un e Constitution, laws or treaties of the United States and/or under

SC § 1332 wherein thi class action over $10,000,000.00 where at least one plaintiff is

rse from one defendant.
over the defendants in this action by the fact that the
Defendants are conducti ess in the state o
3. e Consent Order entered
AURORA BANK, FS nd the United States De
of Currency (the “OCC i i ’s jurisdiction, as the
Plaintiffs’ rights here do not d@ e relief provided for
under the Consent decree.

4. Plaintiffs seek equitable reli
California Notary laws and will not affect enforcement or otherwis
decree. Plaintiffs seek equitable relief to compel defendants to cure the effect of
dissemination of improperly acknowledged foreclosure documents in public la
that this action will be joined by several California county District Attorney

5. Venue is proper in this Court pursuant to 28 USC § 139 e the action involves
28 USC § 1391(b) and a

real property located in the Central District of California; and pursuant

substantial part of the events or omissions on which the claims are based occurred in this District.
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I. PARTIES

6. Defendant, AURORA LOAN SERVICES, LLC (“AURORA”) is believed to be a Delaware

Company and subsidiary of a national banking association, AURORA

Defendant QUALITY LOAN SERVICE CORPORATION (“QUALITY ), a California

is the alleg eds of California Deeds of Trusts serviced or

owned by AUROR \t all time relevant QUALITY acted an agent to and under the

exclusive control of AURORA.

9. Plaintiff, DARYOUSH M. JAHRQ
Amended Complaint is a resident of the State of California
secured by a defaulted Note and Deed of Trust allegedly serviced by Defe

10. Plaintiff, FERNANDO A. MILLER, at all times mentioned herein releva
Amended Complaint is a resident of the State of California and the o
secured by a defaulted Note and Deed of Trust allegedly servic

11. Plaintiffs do not know the true names and capacities of the defendants DOES 1 through 10,

inclusive, and, as such, names said defendants by such fictitious names. Plaintiffs will amend
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the complaint to state the true name and capacity of the DOE defendant(s) when such
information is ascertained.

12. Plaintiffs are informed and believe, and allege thereon, that each defendant is responsible in

ccurrences alleged in the complaint at all times mentioned and that

laintiffs’, and the g

public’s, actual injury were proximately caused by the defendants

business practices.
. Plaintiffs are further informed and believe, and allege thereon, that each defendant was the

oyee of their co-defendants, and in doing the things

14. i - % hereon, that each defendant

other in the acts alleged herein.

15. In response to the Original Complaint, AURORA allege on to Di that it is
not a covered person pursuant to TILA Section 1604(a), notwithstanding t ress language
to the contrary contained the Plaintiffs’ respective Assignments of Deeds
AURORA asserts that it is merely the authorized loan servicer of the J
MILLER MLN:S, but failed to provide any evidence or identificati
beneficiary holding the rights to enforce the subject MLN.

16. AURORA takes the opposite position in Plaintiffs’ respective Unlimited Civil and Unlawful

Detainer cases and has requested judicial notice of documents of publicly filed documents.
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Therein, AURORA claims it is the party entitled to enforce the terms of the Plaintiffs’

respective secured loans and therefore, that as the foreclosing beneficiary, that AURORA was

the proper party to take title to the Plaintiffs’ properties following non-judicial foreclosure.

document presented satisfactory evidence of identity, oath, appeared in the Notary’s presence,
and actually signed the document. It is unlawful for a non-notary to act as a notary or to use

the stamp, signature of sequential journal of a notary. In California and in other states, a
5
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notary is required to possess, utilize and keep secure a notary seal and sequential journal. A
notary public is required to keep one active sequential journal at a time of all acts performed

as a notary public. The journal must be kept in a locked and secured area (such as a lock box

substantial cost of doing business for defendants and its competitors.
25. So as to substantially reduce legitimate notary related costs, and so as to

and evidentiary value of non-judicial foreclosure documents, most of
s have implemented

of inaccurate, deceptive and fraudulent representations of fact, d.

a business practice that relies upon the systemic violation of no laws and standards.
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26. That this practice has polluted our public land records non-judicial foreclosure documents

which very often contain false, improper, inaccurate and fraudulent content as well as faulty

acknowledgements.

content, because these documents appear to be properly acknowledged,
e documents are pr ed by the public, citizens, title companies, judges, trustees, buyers,

be prima facie evidence that the document is the duly authorized

act of the entity named in the instrument (see Civil Code Section 1190).

es are published in contemplation of effectuating

cases, including those of each lead Plaintiff.

29. Where litigation ¢

30.

31.

properties under the California statutory scheme, Civil Code 2924.
32. In each, case Defendants caused various documents to be record public land records
each of which were created by Defendants in contemplation of afion-judicial foreclosure.

33. Said documents, including Assignments of Deeds of Trust, Substitutions of Trustee and

Deeds Upon Trustee Sale, are were each executed by an agent of Defendants who lacked any
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personal knowledge as to the facts asserted in each document and who lacked any agency
relationship to the true party entitled to enforce the terms of the subject MLN.

34. That each foreclosure document was improperly acknowledged, derivative of a promoted

ed “Robo-signing” and central to an institutionalized business practice

hich relies upon th citing, coercing and influencing of improper notarial acts, known by

, deceptive and improper.
. Said foreclosure documents were acknowledged by non-notaries, acknowledged outside the

ithout verification of the signer’s identification, and

37. As required under California law, cg ¢ ired to be properly
acknowledged by a notary prior to recording in the publi®
38. Central to this unlawful practice is the creation, execution and publication
thousands of improperly acknowledged foreclosure related documents in
records. While the practice has saved defendants millions in processin
has polluted our public land records system with improperly ac ed foreclosure
documents.

39. The business practice allows non-notaries to act in a notary’s capacity, eliminates the time,

need and effort to maintain notary standards, eliminates the time, need and effort to maintain
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journals and further facilitates quick and inexpensive non-judicial foreclosure of California
real property with total disregard for the law and the rights of the affected Class members.

40. As stated in the Consent Order entered into between AURORA and the United States

011, the Comptroll nd that AURORA

“(b) filed or caused to be filed in state and federal courts, or in local land records

offices, numerous affidavits or other mortgage-related documents that were not

properly notarized g not signed or affirmed in the presence of a notary”

42.

43.

its foreclosure practice.
44. To this end, Defendants knowingly solicits, coerces and influenc erformance of
improper notarial acts and has institutionalized the very practiceiof violating Notary laws and

professional standards. Defendants knowingly solicit, coerce and influence its notaries
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through unrealistic productivity requirements and by intentionally mismanaging the
acknowledgment process.

45. Defendants knowingly solicits, coerces and influences its notaries and non-notary agents to

tarial acts frequently and in wide variety, including but not limited to:

oliciting, coercing a fluencing acknowledgement of documents not in the presence of the

signer, acknowledge of documents without proper identification, execution and

acknowledgement of documents by a notary, acknowledgement of documents by non-

arizes, use of digital reproduction of notary stamps

47. That the JAHROMI facts are a typical example of the imple
practice where a loan’s originator files for Chapter 11 bankruptcy prior to
transfers of the MLN.

48. So as to save costs, Defendants perpetrates the illusion that the sale of,
occurred after the loan originator enters bankruptcy but without rt’s authorization.

Defendants rely on the use of improperly notarized documents t0 accomplish this cost savings

objective.
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49. JAHROMT’s only significant asset is his residence at 12402 RANCHWOOD ROAD, SANTA
ANA, CA 92705. (The “JAHROMI Property”). On or about February 6, 2007, Plaintiff

entered into a residential refinance loan with FIRST MAGNUS FINANCIAL

ST MAGNUS”) for $840.000.00 secured by a deed of trust.

oon after originatio RORA claimed that it was the authorized servicer of his loan. In

reliance, JAHROMI sending payments to AURORA.

. On August 21, 2008, FIRST MAGNUS filed for protection under Chapter 11 in the District

gage payments from JAHROMI and
represent it wa a ject MLN without bankruptcy authorization.

The FIRST MA i of any indication that any agency

53.

the Substitution of Trustee includes an acknowledgement executed by P

California Notary, Commission #1631316, and recorded in the Orange

record on March 26, 2008.
54. That MERS, SOLANO, ETS and BABB were at all times hercin acting as agents and at the
direction of AURORA. That AURORA and defendants published this SOT document in in

contemplation of non-judicial foreclosure.

11
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55. That the referenced JAHROMI Substitution of Trustee is a fabricated and “photo-shopped”
document, containing inaccuracies and misrepresentations, created to support the illusion that

MERS was still an agent or nominee for FIRST MAGNUS as the true party in interest and

to name ETS as new trustee to the JAHROMI Deed of Trust.

hat the JAHROMI itution was improperly acknowledged. That BABB and DOE 1

have engaged in impr, notarial acts: that DOE 1 improperly acted as a notary when she

bstitution of Trustee, that BABB was not duly commissioned, that

signed the JAHROMI

SOLANO in the presence of BABB, that BABB

otary laws and professional

standards.

57. Those defendants AURORA, ETS, MER erced and influenced

DOE 1 and BABB to engage in the

defendant knew these acts to be improper notarial acts.

58. On April 2, 2009, FIRST MAGNUS was dissolved as a corporation accor: the public
records maintained by the Arizona Secretary of State.

59. JAHROMI began experiencing financial difficulties, defaulted on the

chapter 7 bankruptcy protections under Chapter 7 on or about Ju 10 (Case # 10-

18255-TA).
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60. Notwithstanding the corporate dissolution of FIRST MAGNUS and termination of agency
relationships with AURORA and MERS, defendants caused a “Corporate Assignment of

Deed of Trust” (“JAHROMI Assignment ) on September 10, 2010.

defendants caused a CORPORATE ASSIGNMENT OF DEED OF

RUST (“JAHROM IGNMENT”) to be drafted by THEA CHESNEY and executed by

THEODORE SCHU

alleged Vice President of MERS; see EXHIBIT 2.

. The JAHROMI Assignment purports to transfer all beneficial interest in the Deed of Trust
LERS, and on behalf of the bankrupt and dissolved
ON. The assignment includes an

S, a Nebraska notary and is recorded in the

Orange Count ) r 10, 2010.

63.

64.

this SOT document in anticipation of non-judicial foreclosure.
65. That the referenced JAHROMI ASSIGNMENT is a fabricated a

document, containing inaccuracies and misrepresentations, created to support the illusion that

MERS had any remaining authority to act as an agent of a dissolved corporation, that

AURORA was now the true party in interest and that AURORA ever had standing to enforce

13
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the terms JAHROMI MLN, notwithstanding the bankruptcy filing of the loan’s originator
prior to the alleged transfer date.

. That the JAHROMI Assignment was improperly acknowledged. That PARKS and DOE 2

icited, coerced and influenced

DOE 2 and PARKS t0 rial acts when each

68.

69.

non-judicial foreclosure, as well as false declaration that supported the

and the Deed of Trust had been duly transferred to AURORA fo e consideration. A

copy of the First Magnus Note offered contained no endorsement’of any kind.

70. Based on this fabricated evidence, the Bankruptcy Court entered an Order granting

AURORA’s motion for relief on October 15, 2010. The bankruptcy court and the Chapter 7
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Trustee each believed that AURORA'’s representations that it was the party entitled to enforce
the terms of the MLN. That AURORA added attorney fees to JAHROMTI’s loan balance for

attorneys and other fees related to the motion for relief.

o be a DEED UPON TRUSTEE SALE which grants the JAHROMI

roperty to AURO he “Foreclosing Beneficiary” by way of a credit bid that renders the

sale tax exempt unde Taxation and Revenue Code, Section 480.3.

The DEED UPON TRUSTEE SALE is executed by DIANNE CARTEE, authorized officer

SALE includes an acknowledgement executed by

and therefore not liable or obligated to provide the statutory TILA noti
of an MLN.
75. That AURORA, ETS, CARTEE and BELTRAN lacked proper

horization to act on behalf

of the FIRST MAGNUS Bankruptcy estate.
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76. That the JAHROMI DEED UPON TRUSTEE SALE was improperly acknowledged. That
BELTRAN and DOE 3 have engaged in improper notarial acts in violation of California

notary laws and professional standards: That BELTRAN and DOE 3 have engaged in

. that DOE 3 improperly acted as a notary when she signed the

AHROMI DEED U TRUSTEE SALE, that BELTRAN was not duly commissioned,

that this document w actually executed by CARTEE in the presence of BELTRAN,
that BELTRAN did not"properly acknowledge this document, that BELTRAN did willfully

and exclusive control, BELTRAN did not duly

77.

78.

purposes of its Unlawful Detainer case against JAHROMI. Both sets of
79. That JAHROMI has filed a Complaint in Superior Court alleging clai
wrongful foreclosure.

80. That the JAHROMI is informed and believes that the subject was owned by

HARBORVIEW MORTGAGE LOAN TRUST MORTGAGE PASS-THROUGH

CERTIFICATES, SERIES 2007-2 prior to foreclosure sale.
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&1. That the JAHROMI is informed and believes that HARBORVIEW MORTGAGE LOAN
TRUST MORTGAGE PASS-THROUGH CERTIFICATES, SERIES 2007-2 was the

foreclosure beneficiary, rather than AURORA, notwithstanding the assertions to the contrary

OMI DEED UPON TRUSTEE SALE.

hat through an inde ent audit that JAHROMTI’s expert has discovered that the MLN was

ed security trust, HARBORVIEW MORTGAGE LOAN TRUST

MORTGAGE PASS-

ROUGH CERTIFICATES, SERIES 2007-2.

’s attempts at discovery in the unlawful detainer

TRUST as bene y of the subject Note. ch it is not known when the MLN was

transferred to BORVIEW MORTGAGE EOAN TRUST and by whom.
84. That the Superio ] i ing which relies upon a

Request for Judicial N@ [ ) STEE DEED UON

SALE.
85. That Plaintiff intends pursue individ ' on angd does not seek
a determination of his claims for Wrongful Foreclosure 0 fect of|

notarization of foreclosure documents affecting Plaintiff’s property.

86. Rather, that Plaintiff seeks a determination of the scope of the systemic n
defendants’ improper notarial practice, a determination of the validity
published by defendants affecting Plaintiff’s property, a determi malice, a

e remedial measures

determination of restitution as appropriate and a determination

necessary to correct the public land records public land records for all.
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87. Given the institutional scope of defendants’ improper notarial practice, as alleged herein and
further described in the CONSENT ORDER, it is impractical, repetitive and unnecessarily

expensive for Plaintiffs and those similarly situated, to individually prove allegations of

MILLER FACTS

. Plaintiffs incorporate these allegations into the claim below as though fully set forth herein.
ample of the implementation of defendants’ business
ankruptcy and defendants cause fraudulent and

improperly ack ‘ e, Assignments, Deeds upon Trustee Sale and

ORA is the beneficiary of a securitized

90. Purely to save costs a

91.

bankruptcy remoteness.
92. That MILLER is informed and believes that RESIDENTIAL AC
MORTGAGE ASSET-BACKED PASS-THOUGH CERTIFI S, SERIES 2006-QHI

was the owner of the MLN. Therefore, said Trust was the proper foreclosure beneficiary,

18
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rather than AURORA, notwithstanding the assertions to the contrary contained in the
MILLER DEED UPON TRUSTEE SALE.

93. The MILLER MLN was purportedly sold from originator to trust sponsor, to trust depositor

RESIDENTIAL ACCREDIT LOANS INC. MORTGAGE ASSET-
H CERTIFICATES, SERIES 2006-QHI, according to the Trust’s

eement. Defendants rely upon improperly acknowledged

96. Soon after origination, AURORA claimed that it was the™ ] i s loan. In

reliance, MILLER began sending payments to AURORA.

97. On December 7, 2008, MARY JANE SARNE, as Vice President of Mort Electronic

Registration Systems, Inc. (“MERS”) executed a Substitution of Trust

purports to name Defendant QUALITY as the TRUSTEE to the Deed of Trust,

EXHIBIT 4. That the Substitution of Trustee includes an acknawledgement executed by

BONNIE J. DAWSON, a California Notary, Commission #1628086, and recorded in the

Orange County public land record on January 27, 2009.
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98. That MERS, SARNE, QUALITY, and DAWSON were at all times herein acting as agents
and at the direction of AURORA. That AURORA and defendants published this SOT

document in contemplation of non-judicial foreclosure.

LLER Substitution of Trustee is a fabricated and “photo-shopped”
curacies and misrepresentations, created to support the illusion that

ized agent for MERS, that MERS was a duly authorized agent the

place, that this document was improperly acknowledged®
notary laws and professional standards.

101. Those defendants AURORA, QUALITY, MERS and their agents
and influenced DOE 4 and DAWSON to engage in the aforementione
when each defendant knew these acts to be improper notarial act

102. MILLER began experiencing financial difficulties, defatlted on the MLN and filed for

chapter 7 bankruptcy protections under Chapter 7 on or about August 24, 2010.
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103. On September 10, 2010, AURORA caused a CORPORATE ASSIGNMENT OF
DEED OF TRUST (“MILLER ASSIGNMENT?”), drafted by TRACI SCHNEIDER and

executed by THEODORE SCHULTZ, alleged Vice President of MERS, see EXHIBIT 5.

ASSIGNMENT purports to transfer all beneficial interest in the Deed

f Trust together wit Note to AURORA by MERS, and on behalf SCME. The

assignment includes owledgement executed by LINDA D. PARKS, a Nebraska notary

and is recorded in the Orange County public land records on September 22, 2010.

aent of MERS as the nominee of his Deed of Trust,

judicial foreclosure.

107. That the referenced MILLER ASSIGNMENT is 4

MERS had any remaining authority to transfer the MILLER NOTE to A
AURORA was a new party in interest and that AURORA therefore ha
the terms MILLER MLN, notwithstanding the rights of RESID ACCREDIT
LOANS INC. MORTGAGE ASSET-BACKED PASS-THOUGH CERTIFICATES, SERIES

2006-QHI in the MLN.
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108.

109.

110.

I11.

That the MILLER ASSIGNMENT was improperly acknowledged. That PARKS and
DOE 5 have engaged in improper notarial acts: that DOE 5 improperly acted as a notary

when she signed the MILLER ASSIGNMENT, that PARKS was not duly commissioned, that

actually executed by SCHULTZ in the presence of PARKS, that
ARKS did not prop cknowledge this document, that PARKS did willfully fail to keep
her notary seal under irect and exclusive control, PARKS did not duly record this

transaction in a sequential journal or keep said journal in a safe and secure place, that this

DOE 5 in violation of California and Nebraska

MERS and their agents solicited coerced

he aforementioned improper notarial acts

valuable consideration. Defendants attached an unattached piece of pa
include two endorsements to parties other than AURORA, as we ird purported
endorsement payable to AURORA. The Chain of Title described by the alleged

endorsements contradicts the single transfer Chain of Title described in the MILLER

ASSIGNMENT.

22
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112. Based on this fabricated evidence, the Bankruptcy Court entered an Order granting
AURORA’s motion for relief. The bankruptcy court and the Chapter 7 Trustee each believed

that AURORA’s representations that it was the party entitled to enforce the terms of the

added attorney fees to MILLER’s loan balance for attorneys and other

ees related to the m for relief.

Thereafter, M R a Motion to Compel Chapter 7 Trustee’s interest in mortgage

related against AURORA. An Order approving a compromise between MILLER and the

MILLER has standing to pursue his claims against

115.

116.
“photo-shopped” document, containing inaccuracies and misrepresentati
support the illusion that the non-judicial foreclosure sale was duly perf;
AURORA is the true party in interest and therefore standing to e e terms of the
MILLER MLN and take title after a non-judicial foreclosure sale’and notwithstanding the

notwithstanding the rights of RESIDENTIAL ACCREDIT LOANS INC. MORTGAGE

ASSET-BACKED PASS-THOUGH CERTIFICATES, SERIES 2006-QHI in the MLN.
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117. It should be noted that as contained in its Motion to Dismiss the TILA claims
contained in the Original Complaint, AURORA has admitted and argue that it is merely the
Loan Servicer and therefore not liable or obligated to provide the statutory TILA notices

an MLN.

That AURO UALITY, SANCHEZ and NGUYEN lacked proper authorization

by RESIDENTIAL EDIT LOANS INC. MORTGAGE ASSET-BACKED PASS-

THOUGH CERTIFICATES, SERIES 2006-QHI to name AURORA as “foreclosing

professional standards.
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120. Those defendants AURORA and QUALITY and their agents solicited, coerced and
influenced DOE 6 and NGUYEN to engage in the aforementioned improper notarial acts

when each defendant knew these acts to be improper notarial acts.

RORA on behalf of itself initiated an Unlawful Detainer case seeking

amages and passion e subject property. Most egregiously, AURORA continues its

attempts to create the ion that it was the foreclosure beneficiary and therefore a new

creditor, for purposes of its Unlawful Detainer case against MILLER and his tenants. Both

erior Court alleging claims including fraud and
wrongful forec ¢ ed after AURORA requested judicial notice

foreclosure documents.

124.

published by defendants affecting Plaintiff’s property, a determination of
determination of restitution as appropriate and a determination of the rem measures

necessary to correct the public land records public land records for all.
125. Given the institutional scope of AURORA’s improper ng actice, as alleged
herein and further described in the CONSENT ORDER, it is impractical, repetitive and
unnecessarily expensive for Plaintiffs and those similarly situated, to individually prove

allegations of defendants illegal business practices.
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CLASS ACTION ALLEGATIONS

126. Plaintiffs incorporate the allegations above in this claim as though fully set forth

b

a determination of the scope of the systemic nature of the defendants

improper notarial pra a determination of the validity of all acknowledgments published

by defendants affecti aintiff’s property, a determination of malice, a determination of

restitution as appropriate, the appropriate civil penalties for as yet un-joined municipalities

es necessary to correct the public land records

3

declaratory relief, injunctive relief, restitution and damages.
130. Plaintiffs bring this action under Rule 23 of the Federal Rules
behalf of the themselves and on the following Classes:

(1) All California real property owners whose property is allegedly encumbered
by a Deed of Trust securing a Note in default owned or serviced by AURORA
or its agents AND where AURORA or its agents has caused any document to
be recorded in the public land records after January 1, 2008 which required an
acknowledgment under California law.
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131.

135.

136.

(2) Excluded from the Class are defendants, and their affiliates, subsidiaries,
current or former employees, officers, directors, agents, representatives, and their
family members.

o not know the exact size or identities of the members of the proposed

, since such 1 tion is in the exclusive control of the Defendants.

reporting its delinquency ra
some stage of non-judicial foreclosure, 2

AURORA.

ETS and QUALITY each play a crucial role in creating, executing,
recording and improperly notarizing thousands of foreclosure related doc
conservative estimate suggests that the Class size could approach 10,000
borrowers.

Therefore, the proposed Class is so numerous that join members is
impracticable. Furthermore, it is impractical for individual Plaintiffs to individually attempt

to discover the scope of AURORA and other defendants’ systemic violations of state notarial

laws and would require repetitive efforts.
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137. The Class Plaintiffs do not seem to litigate their individual wrongful foreclosure cases
here. Instead the Plaintiffs seek appropriate restitution, judicial determinations injunctive and

equitable remedies given AURORA and other defendants’ institutionalization of a business

n the intentional solicitation, coercing and influence on individuals to

ommit improper no acts.
stances, a class action is superior to other methods for the fast and

efficient adjudication of this controversy and to avoid the risk of disparate and inconsistent

egarding the issues in this case does not create any

Section 1189;

c. Whether the alleged creation, institution management a enance of the practice

of systemically violating state notarial laws for profit rises to the level of malice or a

reckless disregard of the rights of the Class members;
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d. Whether the a systemic practice of soliciting, coercing or influencing the performance
of improper notarial acts so as to reduce the true cost of servicing defaulted loans

constitutes unfair competition;

ers of the public are likely deceived by the systemic practice of

soliciting, co or influencing the performance of improper notarial acts including

the recording proper acknowledgments in the public land records;
The determination that any improperly acknowledged documents shall not constitute

ents are the duly authorized act of the entity

judicial determination as to each document;
i.  The determination of the amount of restitution, costs and disgorge ppropriate for
defendants’ violation of Cal B&P §17200;
J. The determination of the amount of cost savings benefiting defi
trust practices violating Cal B&P §17200;
k. Common questions of fact and law do not include the d ination of the validly,

accuracy or veracity of the content of foreclosure documents recorded in the public

land records and determined to be improperly acknowledged.

29
FIRST AMENDED CLASS ACTION COMPLAINT
JAHROMI, et al. v AURORA LOAN SERVICES, LLC, et al.




14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28

140. This is a matter of the important public policy because the fair treatment of distressed
borrowers and respect for the integrity of public land records is a county, state and national

policy priority.

otarial claims of the individual named Plaintiffs are typical of the

laims of the Class a not conflict with the interests of any other members of the Class.

med Plaintiffs will fairly and adequately protect the interests of the

Class. They are committed to the vigorous prosecution of the Class’ claims and have retained

so that final injunctive relief or corresponding declaratory

Class as a whole.
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CLAIMS

FIRST COUNT
Unlawful, Unfair and Deceptive Business Practices
Against All defendants and Does 1 through 10)

Plaintiffs in ate in this claim all of the allegations above as though set forth in

full herein.

1s claim on their own behalf and on behalf of each member of the

47.

Class described above.

aw (UCL) defines unfair competition to

(13

include any “un , unfair, or fraudulent’ iness act or practice. Cal Bus & Prof Code

§17200 et seq.

149. That De ants’ standard operati pcedure togolicit, coerce and influence
improper notarial a owing th . i i aerance of a broader scheme
to process tens of thousands o iforni st possible cost by
systemically misrepresenting standing

150. That said broader scheme inclu

allonges, Notices of Defaults and affidavits so as to create the illusion o

transfers and standing in tens of thousands of foreclosure matters, cy cases and civil

matters. To the extent those documents are not improperly ac edged, they are beyond

the scope of this case but reserved in Plaintiffs’ individual wrongful foreclosure cases.
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151. Plaintiffs’ claims are by no means speculative but are supported by the findings of the
Office of Currency Comptroller, the Federal Reserve, the San Francisco assessor-recorder’s

office, other independent governmental agencies, media reports, whistleblowers and courts.

154. That the “independent foreclosure &

notwithstanding assertions to the contrary.
155. That the Consent Order does not constitute the Plaintiffs’ sole r
borrowers who have already lost their homes. That the Consent oes not address the
defendants’ criminal activity nor does it provide any equitable edy to cleanse the pollution

of California public land records.
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156. Whether Plaintiffs have suffered injury will vary greatly depending on individual
circumstances and what type of document has been improperly acknowledged. Whether a

Trustee Deed upon Sale versus a Substitution of Trustee or an Assignment of Deed of Trust is

ed, the damage to Class Members may range for minimal to extreme.

owever, it is unden that the mass recording of improperly acknowledged documents

injures the integrity o public recording system.

Here, Plaintiffs do not seek damages for individual financial injury but equitable relief

tion of public land records with improperly

based on the effect o ; es need not be decided in
this case.

THE INSTITUTIONALIZAX

159.

Defendants has demonstrated its actual malice towards Plaintiffs and

160. Those defendants are motivated by greed, contempt, h nd ill will toward this class

of Plaintiffs. By institutionalizing this business practice, defendants have demonstrated herein

33
FIRST AMENDED CLASS ACTION COMPLAINT
JAHROMI, et al. v AURORA LOAN SERVICES, LLC, et al.




14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28

161.

164.

FIRST AMENDED CLASS ACTION COMPLAINT
JAHROMI, et al. v AURORA LOAN SERVICES, LLC, et al.

that it lacks any reasonable belief in the truth of matters asserted in tens of thousands of

acknowledgements attached to tens of thousands of false and misleading foreclosure documents.

have acted in reckless disregard of the rights of Plaintiffs, similarly situated

s, taxpayers and private investors in mortgage backed securities.

erty owners,

The improper 1al practice is designed to enhance the illusion created by fabricated

foreclosure documen any which purport to transfer the rights to enforce the terms of tens of

housands of non-negotiable gy notes (the “MLNs”).

contemplated “Chain of Title” is approximately $1,500.00.
a pool of 5,000 MLNs. To save money, Defendants refuse to produce or | cess to the
evidence of the actual transfers to MBSTs. The “technology” cost, proc
associated with proving standing of the true “chain of title” is cost p en defendants’
volume of bankruptcy and litigation matters. Defendants mis t the “chain of title”

through the use of Assignments and other foreclosure documents by creating, executing and

improperly acknowledging fabricated “photo-shopped” foreclosure documents.
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165. That defendants’ network of attorneys is financially rewarded based on the speed in
which the attorneys complete non-judicial foreclosures, bankruptcy and litigation matters. Said

network attorneys incur a performance penalty based on the amount of correspondence with

ount of evidence the attorney’s require “prove-up” a matter. Defendants

mpose “technology through a complex web based interface platform for correspondence,

access and copies of cumentary evidence required in a matter. Such a practice relies on

the speed and deception, the implementation of which demonstrates malice and a reckless

tilize the business practice to obtain attorney

fees awards fro ' anging from $600-$1000 for each successful

167.

168.

169. That the improper acknowledgement of these manufactured

element in creating the illusion of the legitimacy of the forecl
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170. Those defendants employ the improper notary practice to support the broader business
model of manufacturing and publishing foreclosure documents as needed and without regard

to the truth.

173.

174.

Federal courts, Superior courts, Unlawful Detainer courts and mortgag

175. That the effective utilization of the broader model begins offensive practice

of institutionalizing a culture and practice of improper acknowlédgment of those foreclosure
documents with are then published in land records in contemplation of non-judicial

foreclosure.
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176. Beyond their contemplated use within the non-judicial foreclosure process, the
improper acknowledgements attached to foreclosure documents constitute prima facie

evidence that the document is the duly authorized act of the entity named in the instrument.

laintiff files bankruptcy or attempt to litigate issues related to debt,

oreclosure or title, ants assert the improperly acknowledged documents as prima facie

ocument is duly authorized.

That in reality,

o such presumption should exist. While the improperly notarized

a of non-judicial foreclosure, but they have a direct,

based on the corruption of the Nota

DEFENDANTS’ IMPROPER NOTARZATION PRACTICE IS AIR

180. That the improper notarization practice is implemented for the ulti purpose of
maximizing Defendants’ profit through the reduction of due diligence
processing costs.

181. Central to this unfair practice is the creation, execution publication of tens of

thousands of improperly acknowledged foreclosure related documents in the public land

records since 2008. These illegal short cuts result in substantial cost savings.
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182. The Relevant Market is defined as residential loan servicing. The national loan
servicing market is currently estimated to be $7.846Trillion of which California represents

over 50%. Defendant AURORA is in the top five among the largest servicers of defaulted

in the United States and California.

AURORA is eenth among the largest servicers of residential mortgages in the

United States, servic rrent portfolio of 276,000 residential mortgage loans worth

$63.6Billion and holds a Market Share of approximately 9% in California.

icers based on defaulted loans with 26.2% of its

186.

productivity, lower processing costs, lower litigation expenses, lower a
increased foreclosure related revenue. The presumptive evidenti e of these improperly
acknowledged documents has a chilling effect on borrowers’ objections, litigation and

opposition which results in greater cost savings for defendants.

38

FIRST AMENDED CLASS ACTION COMPLAINT
JAHROMI, et al. v AURORA LOAN SERVICES, LLC, et al.




14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28

187. One court has said that an unfair business practice is one that "offends an established
public policy or when the practice is immoral, unethical, oppressive, unscrupulous or

substantially injurious to consumers" (People v. Casa Blanca Convalescent Homes, Inc.

d 509, 530 [206 Cal. Rptr. 164, 53 A.L.R.4th 661]). While no clear test
o determine what co tes unfair business practice has been established in California, the
improper notary prac unfair by this definition.

That another court has stated that to determine whether a business practice is unfair,

fendant's conduct against the gravity of the harm to

App. 4th 1093, e improper notary practice is unfair by this
definition.

189. The only

190. That since the foreclosure crisis began in 2008, tl
violating the Notary laws and professional standards has lead to increased
elimination of the otherwise time consuming and expensive process of en
acknowledgement of foreclosure documents.

191. That in the context of this national mortgage crisis, a ma: payer bailout of

defendant AURORA and the general devastation caused by ho

foreclosures, the alleged

business practice is immoral, unethical, oppressive, unscrupulous and substantially injurious
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to all consumers. That whether a consumer is a homeowner in financial distress or not, there

is a common interest in preserving the integrity of our public land records and court system.

IMPROPER NOTARZATION PRACTICE IS DECEPTIVE
eptive business practice is the creation, execution and publication of

perly acknowledged foreclosure related documents in the public

of soliciting, coercing and influencing improper

practice is the subject of this lawsuit.
195. The practice of creating improper acknowledgments restricts borro
challenging the veracity of a document’s assertions and the validity of an
foreclosure sale.
196. The illusionary certificates of acknowledgement attache ecuted instrument,
such as a Substitution of Trustee, Assignment or Deed Upon T

ee Deed, is prima facie

evidence that the document is the duly authorized act of the entity named in the instrument.
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The deceptive effect of improper acknowledgement cascades throughout bankruptcy and civil
cases, in addition to non-judicial foreclosures.

197. Therefore, even where the party who executes a document lacks personal knowledge

hip with the party entitled to enforce the terms of an MLN, an

llusionary acknowle ent wrongfully obstructs borrowers from making legitimate

challenges to the vali f the foreclosure document.

That defendants have processed tens of thousands of non-judicial foreclosure

of improperly notarized documents in addition to
of deed of trust were properly endorsed or

at the appropriate time.

199. That w tained in the foreclosure documents are
e of these documents and
defendants’ solicitatio mmit improper notarial
acts that is the subject of this action.

200. That the public, including Pla new greditors, credit

deceived by
the improperly acknowledged foreclosure documents filed in the public la
notwithstanding the truth of the matters asserted in those documents.

201. That defendants have generated tens of millions of dollars in re

rance fees, Chapter

premature or unjustified foreclosure fees, attorney fees, notary fi

13 trustee distributions, broker service fees, late fees and servictag fees charged to borrowers.
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202. Those defendants have wrongfully foreclosed and prevailed in bankruptcy motions,
Unlawful Detainer cases, Superior Court cases and Federal cases by offering improperly

notarized foreclosure documents as self-authenticating and presumptively valid evidence.

improperly acknowledged documents.
206. The improperly acknowledged documents, while published in cont tion of non-
judicial foreclosure, are used against Plaintiffs’ interests in bankruptcy ca,
cases, civil court cases and unlawful detainer cases to support the illusi
rights and the prima facie evidence of the validity of said docu
ch frequency and

207. The improperly acknowledged documents are used with

abundance so as to degrade the integrity of the public land records system, the office of
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notaries and our court system. As such, said practice is causing irreparable injury to members

of the general public.

DEMAND FOR JURY TRIAL

of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure, Plaintiffs demand a jury trial

PRAYER FOR RELIEF

WHEREFORE, Plaintiffs pray for judgment against defendants, and each of them, as follows:

be maintained as a class action under Rule
il Procedure, that Plaintiffs be certified as

as counsel for the Class.

¢ appointed

b. A determinatio ness practices, related actions,

failures to act, represe of California Business
& Professions Code §17200;

c. An order compelling defendant
all persons who act in concert with them be permanent
acts of unfair competition, related to the filing of improperly acknowle documents in

the public land records in violations of § 17200, including, but not li

violations alleged herein.

d. An determination of the scope of the nature and seriousnes alleged misconduct, the

number of violations, the persistence of the misconduct, the length of time over which the
misconduct occurred, the willfulness of the defendant's misconduct, and the defendant's

assets, liabilities and net worth.
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e. A determination of as to which the scope of the nature and seriousness of the alleged
misconduct, the number of violations, the specific identification of each violation, the

persistence of the misconduct, the length of time over which the misconduct occurred, the

efendant's misconduct, and the defendant's assets, liabilities and net
worth.
A determination amount of cost savings benefiting defendants from the deceptive

practices violating Cal B&P §17200 in this context;

ution and disgorgement of profits appropriate for

gister of each court’s

official record. a “Notice of Imp , ¢ similar

within any pleading by defendants’ in any court’s docket or claims re
J- Only where this matter is joined by the California Attorney Genera
County District Attorney or City Attorney, a civil penalty no ed two thousand five
hundred dollars ($2,500) for each act of recording of an im erly acknowledged

document or soliciting, coercing or influencing an improper notarial act;
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k. That Plaintiff and the Class recover their costs of suit, including attorney’s fees as provided
by law; and

1. For such other and further relief, equitable or otherwise, as is just under the

Dated: April 9, 2012 LAW OFFICES OF J.LARTHUR ROBERTS

EPH ARTHUR ROBERTS, ESQ.
rney for Plaintiffs
all others similarly situated
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XHIBIT 9
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XHIBIT 10
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